Board of Commissioners' Meeting
Minutes for Town of Minnesott Beach
May 8, 2018

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, May 8, 2018 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Tim Fowler, Mayor Pro Tem Adam Garfinkel,
Commissioner Cliff Braly, Commissioner Pete Hall and Commissioner Cathy Hurm

Others present: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager; Donna Scott, Town Clerk; Greg & Starr
Murphy and Paul Scott.

Mayor Fowler welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order at 7:00pm
with a moment of silence and lead everyone in the pledge of alliance to the flag,

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the May 8, 2018 agenda.
Commissioner Hall moved to approve the agenda. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to April 10, 2018 regular meeting
minutes. Commissioner Braly moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Public Comments: none

Town Manager’s report: There were no zoning permit applications applied for last month.
Ms. Braly reported receiving a notice from Waste Industries regarding an increase in fees
effective July 1, 2018. She will be sending a letter to Minnesott Beach Mobile Home Court
to increase their fees as well.

She also reported sending a registered letter to Mr. Wilbur Boone, owner of land along
Bennett Road, requesting that he clean up his lot of garbage & trash that has been dumped
there. The return receipt has been received. He has seven days to clean it up per the Code
of Ordinances. Ms. Braly said if it was not cleaned up by next week, she would find
someone to go in and take care of it. Commissioner Hurm asked if the sheriff has been
called and Mayor Fowler said no. He said there was nothing in the trash that indicated to
whom it belonged.

Ms. Braly said a letter was sent to Ms. Loretta Weston regarding the cutting of the weeds &
underbrush on her lot on Country Club Drive.

Mayor Fowler asked if Glenda Raynor had responded to the town’s requests regarding the
shed in Indian Bluff Drive. Ms. Braly said Ms. Raynor had not gotten back with any
information.

Planning Board Report: Commissioner Garfinkel reported there was no May
Planning Board meeting. He plans to have a meeting in June. Commissioner
Garfinkel said several members had asked him about Waste Industries destroying the
trash cans. Ms. Braly said Waste Industries will be replacing all trash can eventually,
as they are destroyed. Commissioner Garfinkel said Becca Lang at Arlington Place
had contacted him about updating their design guidelines and would the town require
any special language to be included. He responded to them, after consulting with




Mayor Fowler, that as long as incorporation by reference the Town’s Code of
Ordinances that was enough for us. Commissioner Garfinkel said they would take up
any issues that might be triggered at tonight’s meeting.

Public Hearing on the dog, Blue: Commissioner Hall moved to leave the regular
meeting and go into a public hearing. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler explained the purpose of the hearing was to discuss the complaints received
about the dog named Blue who lives at 730 Phillips Drive. Commissioner Hall said the
summary of the complaints were: the dog runs loose, is in neighbors’ yards & garages at
all hours of the night, runs after his owner’s car and acts aggressively. He said apparently,
the owner doesn’t have control over this animal because the owner has to get the dog to
chase their automobile to get him home. Commissioner Hall said the owner has been
notified on numerous occasions by the town that they are in violation of the Town’s Code
of Ordinances. Copies of the ordinances have been provided to them with regards to Dogs
and to penalties for not abiding by the ordinances. Commissioner Hall read into the
minutes a portion of an email received from the owner in response to a letter from the town

in November 2017 whereby she says, “...1 exercize him as much as possible in the fenced in back
yard. In the late evenings, I run Biue. T wait till its dark so that he does not interfere with anyone in this
neighborhood that like to walk or do yard work, etc. Blue is very friendly and will address everyone he sees.
Unfortunately because of his size, some people get frightened. So, after dark, 1 allow Blue to run. He runs
beside my car (not chases if). He stays right beside the car and follows me right home and comes right in the
house. Its a process that takes about 135 min. It allows Blue to exercize without disrupting anyones lifestyle.
And once again, this disturbs my direct neighbors. I do not do this with Blue to avoid Town ordinances, I do
this with Blue so that he can run without disturbing anyone. He does not run at large during this 15 min, Tam
right there with him from start to finish. If Blue has caused any damage to any property during his nightly
rur, 1 will be glad to compensate for it. Please let me know if this s the case, and I will gladly pay for any

damages.” The entire email is made a part of these minutes by reference. Commissioner
Hall said it is apparent in the email she is aware of the town’s ordinances. Mayor Fowler
stated for the record, the Ordinance in question is Section 94.04 Dogs A & F.

Mayor Fowler opened floor for any comments from the public. Mr. Scott asked if the
board had seen the videos & photos of this dog coming into his yard and chasing the
owners car? Mayor Fowler said some of the commissioners had seen the video last
meeting. The pictures showed the dog in the Scott’s yard with no supervision. The
owners’ house in the background and no one could be seen outside. Ms. Murphy said she
had offered to help her repair her fence and was told no. Ms. Murphy said the dog had not
been in her yard in over a month. He is tied with a rope in the front yard all the time. Mr.
Murphy asked if there was a town ordinance regarding tethering an animal. Mayor Fowler
said there is nothing in the Town’s Code of Ordinances regarding this issue.
Commissioner Garfinkel asked that the photos and video be retained as evidence. There
being no further comments, Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to go out of the Public
Hearing back into the regular meeting. Commissioner Braly moved to go out of the Public
Hearing back into the regular meeting. All ayes.

Old Business for discussion and possible action:

1. Dog Complaints: Mayor Fowler said it was time to determine what to do about
the dog complaints. The Code of Ordinances allows for a $25 fine for the first
instance of noncompliance with the fine doubling with each reoccurrence by
the same owner. Commissioner Braly said the owner is in compliance having
the dog tethered in the yard. After more discussion, Commissioner Hall moved



to write a letter to Elizabeth Tebo owner of the dog informing her of the
infractions and charging her with a $25 penalty for noncompliance of the
Town’s Code of Ordinance Section 94.04, (A) & (F). Commissioner Garfinkel
requested the letter include the findings of the BOC that the dog was
photographed running at large on the property of another which is a clear
violation of 94.04 (F). Mayor Fowler asked for a vote in favor of fining the
owner of the dog Blue for Ordinance violations: All ayes.

. Town Projects: Commissioner Braly reported that due to weather and mechanical
problems, things are currently at a standstill on Country Club Drive West. He
expects work to begin again this week.

He is consulting with an architect about plans for the renovation of the office area of
the town hall.

Town Clean-up: Commissioner Braly reported the Town Cleanup went off without
a hitch and provided a copy of the preliminary report of expenses related to the
cleanup. He said we’ve not received the cost from the Transfer Station.
Commissioner Braly said the town collected over 15 tons of materials this year.
Everyone worked very hard!

Commissioner Hall apologized for not being available to help with the cleanup but
he was out of town welcoming his new grandson into the world: Nikolaos William
Bitterman.

. Proposed 2018-2019 Budget: Commissioner Hurm said she had given all
commissioners a copy of the proposed budget last month for them to look over. She
said Waste Industries’ increase will not affect the budget. Commissioner Hurm said
she’d done some research on what affect a zoning change of the MG&CC would
have on the town. The county has the golf course listed as commercial property.
The effect on tax revenue for Minnesott Beach would be minimal. The Town only
gets $1,859.56 of the $11,371.00 the golf course pays in county taxes. She said it
does not matter how the property is zoned in Minnesott Beach, the tax rate is the
same.

Commissioner Hurm said the tax rates for the town in 2007-2010 was $.18/100,
2011 was $.15/100, 2012-current is $.13/100. She proposed the tax rate for the
coming year be reduced to $.11/100. She said the conservative practices of the
previous boards allow us to do this. Commissioner Hurm said in looking over the
minutes of the last meeting, there was a question about 3% vs 5% pay raise. She
said we are fortunate we can give a 3% employee raise which is inline with the 2%
consumer index. She said not all municipalities give raises each year.
Commissioner Hall asked if there were separate line items for taxes & workman’s
comp insurance. Mayor Fowler indicated those line items are in the budget on page
3. Mayor Fowler asked for any questions or discussion. Commissioner Hurm
recommended the board go with the proposed budget and advertise in the Pamlico
News. Mayor Fowler pointed out that the town has for the past two years given a
5% payroll increase. Commissioner Hurm said that last year’s pay raises were from
4.2%-6.6%. Mayor Fowler said, “for a 5% average.” Commissioner Hurm said 5%
is way above what any other municipality in the county is giving. Many towns are
not giving pay increases. Mayor Fowler said the process is the Board has to approve
this budget and at the next meeting there will be a public hearing. Commissioner




Garfinkel said he appreciated all the work that Commissioner Hurm has done with
the proposed budget. He said he thought the town can and should maintain the 5%
pay raise for its employees. Commissioner Hurm said she thought that was
unreasonable. Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to vote on the payroll raise first
because Commissioner Braly cannot vote on raises, but he can vote on the overall
budget. Commissioner Hall moved to vote on a payroll raise of 5%. Mayor Fowler
asked for a vote on the motion of a 5% employee raise. The vote was 2 to 1 with
Commissioners Garfinkel and Hall voting aye and Commissioner Hurm voting no.
Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to accept the proposed budget as amended.
Commissioner Braly moved to accept the proposed budget as amended. The vote
was 3 to 1 with Commissioners Braly, Garfinkel & Hall voting aye and
Commissioner Hurm voting no. The public hearing will be at the next BOC meeting
in June.

Current Finances:

Commissioner Hurm reported revenues are coming in as expected with expenses well
within the budgeted totals. The Town’s current assets as of April 30, 2018 are: First
Citizen's Bank Checking $5,143.33; First Citizen's MM $219,033.29; CressCom Bank’s
Savings $217,953.44; North Carolina Management Trust is $203,484.37; Petty Cash $50.00.
The town currently has CDs at First South Bank & Savings totaling $228,596.28. Total
assets for the Town are $897,325.31. The commissioners all have a copy of the financial
report which, by reference, is made a part of the minutes and may be viewed at the townhall.
Mayor Fowler thanked Commissioner Hurm for all of her hard work for the town.

Miscellaneous: Mayor Fowler reminded everyone of the ethics training coming up. It will
be available online from the 23™ of May through October 3 1st.

Commissioner Hurm said Pamlico County is sponsoring a “Thank a Vet” Program. Vets
should bring their DD214 form to the Register of Deeds office at the courthouse. This
program encourages military Veterans to record their Military Discharge Form in the
Register of Deeds office and in return receive a photo identification which they can present
to participating businesses offering discounts to Veterans.

There being no further business, Commissioner Hall moved to adjourn the meeting. All
Ayes.

&m J/Mﬁb

Donna Scott, Town Clerk




